Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

YouSolar, Inc.
292 Brokaw Road
Santa Clara, CA 95050
www.yousolar.com

Up to $4,999,997.22 in Class B Common Stock at $0.74
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.62

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: YouSolar, Inc.

Address: 292 Brokaw Road, Santa Clara, CA 95050
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: May 11, 2010

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.62 | 13,513 shares of Class B Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $4,999,997.22 | 6,756,753 shares of Class B Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Class B Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $0.74

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $349.28

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives & Bonuses™

All Investor Owners Club

20% or 10% discount on a PowerBloc® system (excluding solar panels and installation
charges), if purchased in by 1 December 2022 or 1 December 2023, respectively, for
U.S. delivery or Free-on-Board, Santa Clara, California, for all international



destinations. Discount applies only to the first U.S. $100,000.00 of order(s) by the
investor.

Early Bird

First 48 hours - Friends and Family Early Birds | 20% bonus shares
Next 72 hours - Early Bird Bonus | 15% bonus shares

Next 7 days - Early Adopters | 5% bonus shares

Perks by Investment Amount

$700+ YouSolar-branded Organic T-shirt. Some colors are not available in organic
cotton.

$1,500+ YouSolar T-Shirt and Visor or Trucker Hat
$3,500+ YouSolar T-shirt or Hoodie and Visor or Trucker Hat and Coffee Mug
$7,500+ YouSolar-branded titanium sports bottle + 5% bonus shares.

$27,500+ Wonderfully crafted, stackable model of the PowerBloc® for your desk.
(Works as a "stress toy” or paperweight.) + 10% bonus shares.

*All perks occur after the offering is completed.
The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

YouSolar, Inc. will offer 10% bonus shares for all investments that are committed by
investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Class B Common
Stock at $0.74 / share, you will receive 110 Class B Common Stock, meaning you'll own
110 shares for $74. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

Note on Bonus Shares and Perks

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.



The Company and its Business

Company Overview

YouSolar Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010 in Delaware under the entity Fireball Solar

Technologies, LLC. On January 16t of 2013, the company converted from Fireball
Solar Technologies, LLC to Fireball Technologies, Inc. On April 22, 2013, Fireball
Technologies, Inc. amended the company name to YouSolar, Inc. ("YouSolar™). All
intellectual property has been assigned to and is owned by the company.

YouSolar sells the PowerBloc®, an independent solar+battery nano-grid that delivers
clean and resilient power for the home or business. The PowerBloc is not a backup
system but a primary power system to the home or business. Solar energy is the
primary energy source, but PowerBloc can seamlessly blend solar, utility, and
generator power on its efficient direct current architecture. YouSolar is installing
PowerBloc systems at homes in Northern California threatened by wildfires and a
clinic in Key West, Florida, in the path of tropical storms. The PowerBloc’s patented
stackable modules, coming in 2022, will allow for easier shipment and plug-and-play
installation.

Competitors and Industry

The industry landscape includes many companies in different areas of the solar and
battery market. These competitors include large, well-funded public companies, such
as Enphase, Tesla, LG Energy Solutions, or Panasonic. However, in our opinion, the
systems currently offered by these competitors include much heavier battery units
than those of the PowerBloc and are more complicated to install. Our competitors’

systems also do not allow for easy integration of multiple power sources, especially
generators.

Through the features and performance of the PowerBloc®, we aim to open the entire
world to solar energy by dramatically improving the usefulness of solar+battery
systems and access to this technology. We believe the introduction of stackable
modules will be a game-changer for the industry.

We deliver a fully integrated solar+battery nano-grid system that powers an entire
home or business, but that is also safe and fast to assemble even by third-party
electricians that are not familiar with the system. We believe the PowerBloc system is
poised to succeed through our revolutionary technology and the direct-to-consumer
business model which the modular, plug-and-play technology enables.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Development Stage

YouSolar has installed demonstration PowerBloc® solar+battery systems at off-grid
homes in Big Sur and the Sierra Nevada mountains, California. The Big Sur
demonstration has been running continuously for over two years. These systems



tested many power electronics, controls, and software but did not operate only on the
high potential bus as the current, production PowerBloc system. In 2021 we
completed the design of all PowerBloc modules, except for our new single-phase
inverter. That inverter is expected to be completed in Q4 of 2022. These modules
integrate one or multiple solar arrays, bring in utility and generator power, step the
potential of the batteries up and down, or connect multiple cabinets. All power is
delivered to the high potential bus in parallel. All modules are controlled by a program
on a central Linux single-board computer (SBC). These modules fit into 19-inch racks.
For an overview of all modules and specifications, please refer to the technology page
of our website, www.yousolar.com.

The PowerBloc is fully automated. It is controlled by an intelligent energy
management system (EMS) running on the Linux SBC. The EMS receives solar
irradiance data from our in-house real-time satellite solar irradiance forecast. The
system is viewed and controlled via a user interface on an Android tablet. We are
currently installing six residential PowerBloc systems in Northern California, which
will temporarily use a 3rd party inverter. We are also installing a PowerBloc at a clinic
in Florida that will use a 3rd-party 3-phase inverter. (The company has no plans to
develop a 3-phase inverter.) These systems will all operate on a high potential bus.
The company has also designed and engineered the prototype of the stackable module
system. A functional prototype of the stackable enclosures has been built and is
currently undergoing mechanical, thermal, and electrical testing and development.

Future Roadmap

The company will improve its product in all areas: power electronics, controls,
software, and packaging. All of those improvements are important to the system's
performance and competitiveness. Among these improvements are a (1) redesign of
the micro-converter's power stage, communications protocol, and enclosure; (2) a
move to a higher-potential battery and a higher potential at the lower stage of the bi-
directional converter; (3) the design of a lower-cost rectifier, (4) the introduction of a
high-power single-phase inverter: (5) and the testing and market introduction of the
stackable module system. Of these five significant technology developments, the
single-phase inverter and the stackable modules are the most important to the
company's market strategy. There currently are no high-power grid-forming single-
phase inverters in the market. YouSolar's inverter is a critical piece of the PowerBloc
and makes it complete. There will be a 15kW and a 25kW version of the inverter, with
significant surge capacity. These inverters allow the company to offer full utility
power replacements for homes with 100 and 200 Ampere single-phase service, the
most common utility service in the United States. The stackable module represents a
realization of the company'’s vision of a high-power solar-battery system that can ship
with standard shippers, is customizable and scalable to fit our customers’ needs, and
can be assembled and connected to the house by any electrician without training. This
modular and stackable system is made possible by the patented power architecture of
the PowerBloc. We believe that no such system exists in the market. The company
believes the stackable and modular system will see adoption in the residential and
commercial power market and by the military and disaster relief organizations.



The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Arnold Leitner
Arnold Leitner's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Founder, CEO and President
Dates of Service: May 11, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Product design, management, and fundraising. This is Arnold's
full-time role. Arnold has an annual salary of U.S. 275k, As the founder, Arnold
holds founder's shares, Common A. He was also issued options in 2018. He may
receive additional stock option grants in the future.

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: January 16, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the board of directors. Arnold is not compensated
for his role as board member.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Arnold Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP)
Title: Managing Member
Dates of Service: May 01, 2005 - Present

Responsibilities: Identify and invest in business opportunities in the renewable
energy and environmental technology sector.

Name: Michael W. Allman

Michael W. Allman's current primary role is with H2scan. Michael W. Allman currently
services 2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: June 21, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Emplover: Hlscan
Title: Chairman
Dates of Service: January 01, 2017 - Present



Responsibilities: Executive management.

Name: Galen ]J. Torneby
Galen |. Torneby's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President, Operations & Chief Operating Officer
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Operations, sales, and system deployments. Galen is paid USD

150k per year. The board has also approved 400,000 options of Common B stock
for Galen.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Fairweather & Associates
Title: COO
Dates of Service: February 01, 2020 - August 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Galen collaborated closely with the CEO in setting and driving
organizational vision, operational strategy, and hiring needs.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Solar Philippines
Title: COO Power Systems
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - September 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Part-time. Responsible for all PV module manufacturing and all
utility and commercial-scale PV power project delivery.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: SolarCraft
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: August 01, 2019 - January 30, 2020

Responsibilities: Responsible for strategy, personnel management, and
execution with regards to managing all functions at SolarCraft.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: SolarCraft
Title: COO
Dates of Service: May 20, 2019 - July 31, 2019
Responsibilities: Overseeing all aspects of technical operations at SolarCraft,



including safety, project design, and engineering, estimating, project
management, construction and services.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: DNV GL
Title: Head of Department, Solar
Dates of Service: October 01, 2018 - April 23, 2019
Responsibilities: Management responsibility for staff performing technical
advisory work in the solar PV and CSP sectors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Tumult Wines
Title: Co-Owner, Farmhand
Dates of Service: July 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Our vineyard and winemaking business, we grow Malbec grapes
at our home/farm in rural Sonoma County near Calistoga; we sell most of them.
We also make Rosé of Malbec and Malbec red wine.

Name: Richard F. ("Rick") Hoskins

Richard F. ("Rick") Hoskins's current primary role is with Powur PBC. Richard F.
("Rick") Hoskins currently services 2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: September 21, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the board of directors. As compensation, the
Company will issue the “"Hoskins/Frame Family Trust dated Dec. 15, 1999” (the
“Trust”) options to purchase Common Stock B at the strike price of USD 0.17 per
share that is equal to USD 100,000 in value, or USD 100,000 /(USD 0.17 / share) =
588,235 shares. These option shares will vest over two (2) years at the fraction of
1/24th per month at the end of each calendar month beginning 1 September
2020. In addition, concurrent with the closing of an anticipated Regulation A
(Tier 2) financing under which the Company plans to sell Common Stock B to
the general public, the Company will issue the Trust an option to purchase
Common Stock B at the then strike price that is equal to USD 150,000 in value.
These option shares will vest over three (3) vears at the fraction of 1/36th per
month at the end of each calendar month beginning 1 October 2022.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Powur PBC



Title: Chairman of the Board
Dates of Service: January 01, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Typical board duties

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Class B
Common Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaving for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Class B Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject
to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase
cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an



offering registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for
the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the energy sector. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering Class B Common Stock in the amount of up to five-million
United States Dollars (USD 5,000,000) in this offering, and may close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is
likely to need additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise
those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company itself or
the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the
minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for
some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be reguired to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our product developments and sales activity. In that case, the only
asset remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual
property. Even if we are not forced to cease our product developments and sales
activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below
expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Class B Common
Stock. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Class B Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the



sale of Class B Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms
that are could be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a
lower purchase price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Qur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are reliant on one main type of service

All of our current product and services are variants on one type of product,
independent solar and battery power systems. Our revenues are therefore dependent
upon the market for solar-battery systems.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that for certain features of our product there may never be an operational
product or that the product may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible
that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in business model upon
the Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some other factor,
will not be in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage of some of the features of our
product and have only manufactured a few first systems of the PowerBloc® solar-
battery nano-grid. Delays or cost overruns in the development of additional features
of the PowerBloc® and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates
during validation with customers may be caused by, among other things,
unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design
and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our
operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights
The Class B Common Stock that an investor is buving has voting rights attached to
them. However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and



have agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ™), or his
or her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our company, vou will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it may cease operating and you could get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will likely
fail. Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering
might result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later
investors might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C
with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have
the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace. It
is possible that our product will fail to gain market acceptance for any number of
reasons. If the new product fails to achieve significant sales and acceptance in the
marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that



competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

YouSolar, Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010. Accordingly, the Company has a limited
history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be
made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated
with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the
Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of
competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once
our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. YouSolar has incurred a
net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no assurance
that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay
dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and has generated little revenue. If
you are investing in this company, it’s because you think that the PowerBloc® is a
good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or
service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough people so that the
Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no
assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company
owns a number of patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade
secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our
intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or
violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to
protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note
that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective



Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose anv potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, vour investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day-to-day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their



work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As any business, we are vulnerable to hackers who may access our cloud-based
customer and product database or any of our internet-connected computers. Further,
we rely on a third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up
technology. Any disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology
provider or on YouSolar could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact
our financial condition and business.

We are a new company with risks related to small early stage businesses.

We are a small business, and are, therefore, subject to the risks and expenses that
most small businesses face. Although to date, we have received approximately
$340,895 in customer deposits with respect to customer contracts having a value of
approximately $996,044, we have only generated $36,681 in revenues. We expect to
experience net losses in the foreseeable future. In order to be successful, we must,
among other things, successfully execute our business and marketing strategy,
contract with distributors, successfully market our products and operate our business
in compliance with applicable law, respond to competitive developments, and attract
and retain qualified personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in
accomplishing the foregoing, and our failure to do so could have a material adverse
effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business strategy depends on the widespread adoption of solar-battery
technology.

The market for solar and battery products is emerging and rapidly evolving, and its
future success is uncertain. If demand for solar and battery products fails to develop
sufficiently, we may be unable to generate enough revenues to achieve and sustain
profitability. The factors influencing the widespread adoption of solar and battery
technology include, (a) cost-effectiveness, performance and reliability of solar and
battery technologies as compared with conventional and other alternative energy
technologies, (b) success of alternative distributed generation technologies such as
fuel cells, wind power and micro turbines with or without batteries, (¢) fluctuations in
economic and market conditions which impact the viability of conventional and non-
solar-battery alternative energy sources, such as increases or decreases in the prices of
oil and other fossil fuels, (d) continued deregulation of the electric power industry and
broader energy industry, and (e) availability of government subsidies and incentives
for both solar and other energy sources or tariffs or other duties imposed on
components used in our system.

The success of our business is highly correlated to general economic conditions.
Demand for our products is highly correlated with general economic conditions, as a
substantial portion of our revenue is derived from discretionary spending, which



typically declines during times of economic instability. Declines in economic
conditions in the United States or in other countries in which we operate and may
operate in the future may adversely impact our financial results. Because such declines
in demand are difficult to predict, we or our industry may have increased excess
capacity as a result. An increase in excess capacity may result in declines in prices for
our products. Our ability to grow or maintain our business may be adversely affected
by sustained economic weakness and uncertainty, including the effect of wavering
consumer confidence, high unemployment, and other factors. The inability to grow or
maintain our business would adversely affect our business, financial conditions, and
results of operations, and thereby an investment in our common stock.

Natural disasters and other events beyond our control could materially adversely
affect us.

Natural disasters or other catastrophic events may cause damage or disruption to our
operations, international commerce and the global economy, and thus could have a
strong negative effect on us. Our business operations are subject to interruption by
natural disasters, fire, power shortages, pandemics and other events beyond our
control. Although we maintain crisis management and disaster response plans, such
events could make it difficult or impossible for us to deliver our services to our
customers and could decrease demand for our services. In December 2019, a novel
strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, was reported in Wuhan, China. The World Health
Organization subsequently declared the outbreak to constitute a pandemic. The
extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance into
the future will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of
the outbreak, impact on our customers and our sales cycles, impact on our customer,
employee or industry events, and effect on our vendors, all of which are uncertain and
cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our
financial condition or results of operations is uncertain. If the COVID-19 outbreak
continues to spread, we may need to limit operations or implement limitations,
including work from home policies. There is a risk that other countries or regions may
be less effective at containing COVID-19, or it may be more difficult to contain if the
outbreak reaches a larger population or broader geography, in which case the risks
described herein could be elevated significantly.

The growth of our business depends on our ability to finance new products and
services.

We operate in a rapidly changing industry. Technological advances, the introduction
of new products and new design and manufacturing techniques could adversely affect
our business unless we are able to adapt to the changing conditions. To remain
competitive, we must continue to incur significant costs in product development,
equipment, facilities and invest in working capital. These costs may increase, resulting
in greater fixed costs and operating expenses.

Products we manufacture may contain design or manufacturing defects, which could
result in customer claims.

Any defects in the products we manufacture, whether caused by a design,
manufacturing or component failure or error, may result in returns, claims, delayed



shipments to customers or reduced or cancelled customer orders. If these defects
occur, we will incur additional costs and if in large quantity or too frequent, we may
sustain loss of business, loss of reputation and may incur liability.

The reduction or elimination of government and economic incentives could cause our
revenue to decline.

The cost to produce solar energy in many parts is below the cost of electricity in the
U.S. from traditional sources. However, there is significant cost of integrating variable
solar energy sources into the electric power system or of customer-owned batteries to
store variable energy locally. As a result, to encourage the adoption of solar and
battery technologies, the U.S. government and numerous state governments continue
to provide subsidies in the form of cost reductions, tax write-offs and other incentives
to end users, distributors, systems integrators and manufacturers of solar energy
products. Reduction, elimination and/or periodic interruption of these government
subsidies and economic incentives because of policy changes, fiscal tightening or
other reasons may result in the diminished competitiveness of solar energy, and
materially and adversely affect the growth of these markets and our revenues. Even
though by default our system does not net-meter and, in our best understanding, does
not require utility approval, electric utility companies that have significant political
lobbying powers may push for a change in the relevant legislation in our markets, in
particular to related to the aforementioned economic subsidies. The reduction or
elimination of government subsidies could cause our revenues to decline and
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We face intense competition, and many of our competitors have substantially greater
resources than we do.

We compete with major international and domestic companies. Some of our current
and potential competitors have greater market recognition and customer bases, longer
operating histories and substantially greater financial, technical, marketing,
distribution, purchasing, manufacturing, personnel and other resources than we do. In
addition, many of our competitors are developing and are currently producing
products based on new solar energy or battery technologies that may ultimately have
costs similar to, or lower than, our projected costs. As a result, they may be able to
respond more quickly to changing customer demands or to devote greater resources to
the development, promotion and sales of solar and solar-related products than we can.
Our business relies on sales of our solar and battery products and our competitors
with more diversified product offerings may be better positioned to withstand a
decline in the demand for solar products. It is possible that new competitors or
alliances among existing competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire significant
market share, which would harm our business. If we fail to compete successfully, our
business would suffer and we may lose or be unable to gain market share.

Because our industry is highly competitive, we may lose market share to larger
companies that are better equipped to weather a deterioration in market conditions
due to increased competition.

Our industry is highly competitive and fragmented and is subject to rapid change. We



may in the future compete for potential customers with solar and HVAC systems
installers and servicers, electricians, utilities and other providers of solar energy
equipment or electric power. Some of these competitors may have significantly
greater financial, technical and marketing resources and greater name recognition
than we have. Competition in the solar and battery energy industry may increase in
the future, partly due to low barriers to entry, as well as from other alternative energy
resources now in existence or developed in the future. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share and greater
competition for qualified technical personnel. There can be no assurance that we will
be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors. If we are
unable to compete effectively, or if competition results in a deterioration of market
conditions, our business and results of operations would be adversely affected.

If we do not retain key personnel, our business will suffer.

The success of our business is heavily dependent on the leadership of our key
management personnel, including, Arnold Leitner, our chief executive officer and
director. If any of them were to leave us, it would be difficult to replace them, and our
business would be harmed. We will also need to retain additional highly-skilled
individuals if we are to effectively grow. Our future success depends on our continuing
ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain highly skilled personnel for all
areas of our organization.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights could diminish the value of our
products, weaken our competitive position and reduce our revenue, and infringement
claims asserted against us or by us, could have a material adverse effect.

We regard the protection of our intellectual property, which includes patents, trade
secrets, copyrights, trademarks, domain names and intellectual property licenses, as
critical to our success. We strive to protect our intellectual property rights by relying
on federal, state and common law rights, as well as contractual restrictions. We license
one patent and design for a micro-converter used in our product. The license is
irrevocable and fully paid up. In addition the patents issued or licensed to us and any
future patents for which we may apply, or which we may license, may not protect
commercially important aspects of our technology. Furthermore, the validity and
enforceability of such patents may be challenged by third parties, which may result in
them being invalidated or modified by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office ("PTO™),
various legal actions against us, the need to develop or obtain alternative technology,
and/or obtain appropriate licenses under third party patents, which may not be
available on acceptable terms or at all. We have registered domain names and
trademarks in the United States and abroad and may also pursue additional
registrations both in and outside the United States. Effective trade secret, copyright,
trademark, domain name and patent protection is expensive to develop and maintain,
both in terms of initial and ongoing registration requirements and the costs of
defending our rights. We may be required to protect our intellectual property in an
increasing number of jurisdictions, a process that is expensive and may not be
successful or which we may not pursue in every location. Monitoring unauthorized
use of our intellectual property is difficult and costly. Our efforts to protect our
proprietary rights may not be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our intellectual



property. Further, we may not be able to detect unauthorized use of, or take
appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual property rights. In addition, our
competitors may independently develop similar technology. The laws in the United
States and elsewhere change rapidly, and any future changes could adversely affect us
and our intellectual property. Our failure to meaningfully protect our intellectual
property could result in competitors offering services that incorporate our most
technologically advanced features, which could seriously reduce demand for our
products. In addition, we may in the future need to initiate infringement claims or
litigation. Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff or a defendant, can be expensive,
time-consuming and may divert the efforts of our technical staff and managerial
personnel, which could harm our business, whether or not such litigation results in a
determination that is unfavorable to us. In addition, litigation is inherently uncertain,
and thus we may not be able to stop its competitors from infringing upon our
intellectual property rights.

We license certain technology from a third party.

We license a patent and related know-how from elQ Energy, Inc. ("elQ”), pursuant to
a non-exclusive license agreement, which license expires in March 2032. However,
this license is irrevocable and fully paid up which means that we do not have to make
any future payments either to maintain the license or for the number of units made
under the license. We currently also purchase a bi-directional converter from elQ,
which we intend to use until our own designs are developed. If we default under any
of our obligations under the License Agreement, we may be unable to use continue to
manufacture, market and sell our products, as currently designed, which could have a
material adverse effect. In addition, because the license is non-exclusive, elQ Energy,
Inc., could use or license the patent and know-how to others for use in competing
products, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

We are exposed to risks associated with product liability claims in the event that the
use or installation of our products results in injury or damage.

Since our products are electricity-producing devices, it is possible that users, installers
or services providers, could be injured or killed by our products, whether by product
malfunctions, defects, improper installation or other causes. As a manufacturer of
products that are used by consumers, we face an inherent risk of exposure to product
liability claims or class action suits in the event that the use of the products we sell or
install results in injury or damage. Moreover, to the extent that a claim is brought
against us we may not have adequate resources in the event of a successful claim
against us. The successful assertion of product liability claims against us could result
in potentially significant monetary damages and, if our insurance protection is
inadequate, could require us to make significant payments.

We depend upon a limited number of third-party suppliers for key materials, and any
disruption from such suppliers could prevent us from manufacturing and selling cost-
effective products and reduce our revenues.

Our products use materials and components procured from a limited number of third-
party suppliers. We currently purchase these components from a small number of
suppliers. If we fail to maintain our relationships with these suppliers, or fail to secure



additional supply sources from other suppliers, we may only be able to deliver our
products at a higher cost or after a long delay. Any of these factors could prevent us
from delivering our products to our customers within required timeframes, resulting
in potential order cancellations and lost revenue.

Control by Our Founder.

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, each share of
Class A Common Stock holds ten (10) votes, compared to one (1) vote held by each
outstanding holder of Class B Common Stock and for each share of Class B Common
Stock into which the Preferred Stock is convertible. As of the date hereof, there are
approximately 47,423,083 shares of capital stock outstanding, including, 8,855,781
shares of Class A Common Stock, all of which are held by Arnold Leitner & Partners
LLC, an entity controlled by Arnold Leitner, our founder, current Chief Executive
Officer, and director. Therefore, Mr. Leitner controls over 69% of the stockholder
voting power, and is able control our management and affairs and most matters
requiring stockholder approval, including, but not limited to, the election of directors
and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership
and voting power may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control,
which may not be in the best interest of our other stockholders.

The holders of Preferred Stock have preferential rights to dividends and distributions
upon a liguidation, dissolution and certain acquisitions.

Upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, our sale of all or substantially all
of our assets and certain acquisitions (a “Liquidation Event”), the holders of our Series
A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a preference equal to 1 times, and the holders
of our Series Seed Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a preference equal to 1.5
times, the respective original issuance prices for the applicable series of Preferred
Stock (subject to adjustments as described in our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation), before any funds are distributed to the holders of Common Stock. The
original issuance prices for our Preferred Stock, range from $0.05 per share to $0.3325
per share. If a liquidation event occurred as of the date hereof, the holders of our
outstanding Preferred Stock would be entitled to receive the first approximately $6.4
million in distributions, with the remaining amounts being split pro rata amongst the
holders of Common Stock. In addition, if dividends are declared by our board of
directors (payable in other than Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or
certain other securities), non-cumulative dividends in an amount equal to six percent
(6%) of the original issuance price of each share of Preferred Stock, shall be paid to the
holders of Preferred Stock, prior to the payment of any dividends to the holders of
Common Stock. Therefore, if our board of directors declares any dividends or approves
a liquidation event, there may not be any amounts remaining to be paid to the holders
of Common Stock after distribution are made to the holders of Preferred Stock.

The holders of Preferred Stock hold Anti-Dilution Rights.

Each series of Preferred Stock has weighted average anti-dilution protection with
respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below
the original issuance price for such series of Preferred Stock (as may be adjusted
pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation). The application



of the weighted anti-dilution calculation would result in a reduction of the conversion
price of the applicable series of Preferred Stock, thereby resulting in an increase in the
number of shares of Class B Common Stock into which such series of Preferred Stock
is convertible. If in the future, we issue securities at below the conversion price of any
series of Preferred Stock that currently exist or may be authorized and issued, the
holders of such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the issuance of additional shares of
Class B Common Stock upon conversion of such Preferred Stock, through a reduction
in the effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred Stock, which would
result in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in their relative
percentage ownership of us.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment.

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financing in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms at least as, and
possibly more, favorable than the terms of your investment.

Risks of Borrowing.

As of December 1, 2021, we had $85,342 in outstanding loans, of which $75,342 are
held by Officers and/or Directors of the Company, co-founders or family members of
Officers. In addition, we may have to seek loans from financial institutions or the
government.. Typical loan agreements might contain restrictive covenants which may
impair our operating flexibility. A default under any loan agreement could result in a
charging order that would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds.

Qur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Limited Transferability and Liquidity.

Each investor agrees that it will acquire our Class B Common Stock for investment
purposes only and not with a view towards distribution. Certain conditions imposed by
the Securities Act must be satisfied prior to any sale, transfer, conversion or other
disposition of our Common Stock. No public market exists for our Common Stock and
no market is expected to develop.

Dilution



You should understand the potential for dilution. Each investor's stake in us, could be
diluted due to our issuing additional shares. In other words, if we issue more shares,
the percentage of the Company that you own will decrease, even though our value
may increase. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in the
number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial
public offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round or angel
investment), employees exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain
instruments (e.g., convertible notes, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If we
decide to issue more shares, you could experience value dilution, with each share
being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an
investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a
reduction in the amount earned per share (although this typically occurs only if we
offer dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends,
preferring to invest any earnings into the Company). The type of dilution that hurts
early-stage investors mostly occurs when the company sells more shares in a "down
round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. Each series of Preferred
Stock has weighted average anti-dilution protection with respect to certain additional
issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below the original issuance price for
such series of Preferred Stock (as may be adjusted pursuant to our Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation). The application of the weighted anti-dilution
calculation would result in a reduction of the conversion price of the applicable series
of Preferred Stock, thereby resulting in an increase in the number of shares of Class B
Common Stock into which such series of Preferred Stock is convertible. If in the
future, we issue securities at below the conversion price of any series of Preferred
Stock that currently exist or may be authorized and issued in the future, the holders of
such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the issuance of additional shares of Class B
Common Stock upon conversion of such Preferred Stock, through a reduction in the
effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred Stock, which would result
in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in the holder’s relative
percentage ownership of us. If you are making an investment expecting to own a
certain percentage of the Company or expecting each share to hold a certain amount
of value, it is important to realize how the value of those shares can decrease by
actions taken by the Company. Dilution can make drastic changes to the value of each
share, ownership percentage, voting control, and earnings per share.

Capitalization

The Company intends to amend and restate its current certificate of incorporation to
issue shares of Class B Common Stock to the investors in this Offering. The Company
is currently authorized to issue 168,441,310 shares of stock, of which 132,000,000
shares are designated as Common Stock and 36,441,310 shares are designated
Preferred Stock. Of the 132,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 67,000,000 shares are
designated Class A Common Stock and 65,000,000 shares are designated Class B
Common Stock. Of the 36,441,510 shares of Preferred Stock, 6,552,714 shares are
designated as Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, 2,611,616 shares are designated as Series
Seed-2 Preferred Stock, 2,018,566 shares are designated as Series Seed-3 Preferred
Stock, 2,309,579 shares are designated as Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, 1,814,742



shares are designated as Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, 4,559,507 shares are
designated as Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock (the Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, Series
Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock,
Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock and Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock, collectively, are
referred to herein as the "Series Seed Preferred Stock"), and 16,575,586 shares are
designated as Series A Preferred Stock, After the Company amends and restates its
current certificate of incorporation, the Company will be authorized to issue
approximately 110,181,974 shares of stock, of which approximately 80,452,279 shares
shall be designated as Common Stock and approximately 29,729,695 shares shall be
designated as Preferred Stock. Of the approximate 80,452,279 shares to be designated
as Common Stock, 8,855,781 shares shall be designated Class A Common Stock and
approximately 71,596,498 shares shall be designated Class B Common Stock. Of the
approximate 29,729,695 shares to be designated as Preferred Stock, the same number
of shares shall be designated each series of Series Seed Preferred Stock as the current
restated certificate, but approximately 9,862,971 shares shall instead be designated
Series A Preferred Stock. We also have outstanding or promised options to purchase
14,189,047 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price per share
between $0.0001 and $0.17 per share. We have outstanding warrants to purchase
5,590,350 shares of Class B Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from $0.01
to $0.25 per share. We also have two outstanding SAFE Notes in the aggregate
principal amount of $3,000,000. One of the SAFE Notes has an outstanding principal
balance of $2,000,000, and is convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity
financing of preferred stock, at a price per share equal to the lesser of (a) a 20%
discount to the price per share of the preferred stock offered in such equity financing,
and (b) a price per share based on a $20,000,000 pre-money valuation. The other SAFE
Note has an aggregate principal balance of $1,000,000, is convertible into preferred
stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price per share equal to
the lesser of (x) a 20% discount to the price of the preferred stock offered in such
equity financing, and (v) a price per share based on a $30,000,000 pre-money
valuation. We also have two convertible promissory notes with an aggregate principal
amount of $500,000, which each has a simple annual interest rate of 10%, is
convertible into any capital stock upon a bona fide equity financing of at least
$1,000,000, in which the interest is required to be converted into capital stock, but the
principal is convertible at the option of the holder. The following summarizes the
rights of our capital stock as provided in our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation. Dividend Rights. The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive
non-cumulative dividends, out of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in
preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend (payable other than in Class
A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or other securities and rights convertible
into Common Stock) on the Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, at the
applicable Dividend Rate (as defined below), payable when and if declared by the
Board of Directors. "Dividend Rate™ means, with respect to any share of Preferred
Stock, an amount per annum equal to six percent (6%) of the Original Issue Price (as
defined below) applicable to such share of Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for any
stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like).
After payment of such dividends, any additional dividends or distributions shall be



distributed among all holders of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock and
Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of shares of Class A Commeon Stock and
Class B Common Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of
Preferred Stock were converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective
conversion rate. "Original Issue Price"” means $0.3325 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2
Preferred Stock, $0.1750 per share for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock,
$0.1500 per share for each share of the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, $0.0500 per share for each
share of the Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per share for each share of the
Series A Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of
Preferred Stock). Liquidation Rights. Upon any Liquidation Event (as defined below),
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock shall receive out of the proceeds or assets
legally available for distribution (the "Proceeds"), prior and in preference to any
distribution of the Proceeds to the holders of Common Stock, an amount per share
equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.5 times the
Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, 1 times the
applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. If,
upon the occurrence of such event, the Proceeds are insufficient to permit the
payment of the full preferential amounts, then the entire Proceeds shall be distributed
ratably among the holders of the Preferred Stock in proportion to the full preferential
amount that each such holder is otherwise entitled to receive under this paragraph.
Upon completion of the distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the
remaining Proceeds, shall be distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by each. Notwithstanding the above,
for purposes of determining the amount each holder of shares of Preferred Stock is
entitled to receive upon a Liquidation Event, each such holder shall be deemed to
have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually converted) its shares of
Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock immediately prior to the
Liquidation Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such holder would receive, in
the aggregate, an amount greater than the amount that would be distributed to such
holder if such holder did not convert such series of Preferred Stock into shares of Class
B Common Stock. If any such holder shall be deemed to have converted shares of
Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then such holder shall not be entitled to
receive any distribution that would otherwise be made to holders of Preferred Stock
that have not converted into shares of Class B Common Stock. A “Liquidation Event”
includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other
disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the consummation of our
merger or consolidation with or into another entity (except a merger or consolidation
in which the holders of our capital stock immediately prior to such merger or
consolidation continue to hold at least fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of our
capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity immediately following such merger or
consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and with substantially the same
terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or consolidation), (C) the closing of



the transfer, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, to a person or group
of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of our securities), of our securities if,
after such closing, such person or group would hold fifty percent (50%) or more of our
then outstanding voting stock or the outstanding voting stock of the surviving or
acquiring entity, or (D) our liquidation, dissolution or winding up; provided, however,
that a transaction shall not constitute a Liquidation Event if its sole purpose is to
change our state of incorporation or to create a holding company that will be owned
in substantially the same proportions by persons who held our securities immediately
prior to such transaction. The treatment of any particular transaction or series of
related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be waived by the vote or written
consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).
Conversion of Preferred Stock Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at any
time, at the option of the holder thereof, into such number of fully paid and non-
assessable shares of Class B Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Original
Issue Price for such series by the applicable Conversion Price for such series. The
initial "Conversion Price" per share for each series of Preferred Stock shall be the
Original Issue Price of such series, subject to adjustment as set forth below. Each
share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class B
Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of
(a) the closing of the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which results in at least $30,000,000 of gross
proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Offering”) or (ii) the date, or the occurrence of an
event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the holders of a majority of
the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis). Conversion Price Adjustments
for Certain Dilutive Issuances. The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are
subject to adjustment in the case of subdivisions or combinations of common stock,
stock dividends and certain other distributions, and in connection with certain
reorganizations, reclassifications and similar events. The Conversion Price for each
series of Preferred Stock, is also subject to adjustment in the case of certain issuances
of securities at less than the then applicable Conversion Price for such series of
Preferred Stock, based on a weighted average anti-dilution formula. Voting Rights.
General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes
for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is
entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible, and shall be
entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate class
vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the
holders of Common Stock. Director Election Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328
shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the
holders of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect one (1) director (the "Preferred



Director”), and the holders of outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single
class, shall be entitled to elect two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more
than three (3) directors, the holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis)
shall be entitled to elect any remaining directors. Any vacancy, including newly
created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of
directors or amendment of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation,
and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a director, may be filled by a
majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole
remaining director; provided, however, that where such vacancy occurs among the
directors elected by the holders of a class or series of stock, the holders of shares of
such class or series may override the Board's action to fill such vacancy by written
consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director may be removed,
either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of the holders of the
shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such director or directors. Special
Voting Rights of Preferred Stock. As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, we may not take any of the actions
set forth below without the approval of the holders of a majority of the then
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis): (a) consummate a Liquidation Event;
(b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock; (¢) increase or decrease
(other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of authorized shares of
Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of any series of Preferred
Stock; (d) authorize, create or issue any equity security, or instrument convertible
into any security, having a preference over, or on a parity with, any series of Preferred
Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, other than the issuance of
any authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred Stock; (e) (i) reclassify, alter
or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the Preferred Stock with respect
to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such other security senior to the Preferred Stock in respect
of any such right, preference or privilege or (ii) reclassify, alter or amend any existing
security of this corporation that is junior to the Preferred Stock with respect to
dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or amendment
would render such other security senior to or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in
respect of any such right, preference or privilege; (f) redeem, purchase or otherwise
acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund for such purpose) any Preferred
Stock or Common Stock; except for the repurchase of certain shares of Common Stock
from employees, officers, directors, consultants and service providers, under certain
circumstances; (g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing directors;
or (h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock
solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock. Registration Rights Pursuant
to an Investors’ Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders of each
class of our Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment



underwritten public offering of our Common Stock or other equity securities, then
upon a written request of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock (collectively,
“Registrable Securities™), made any time after six months from the effective date of
such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain exceptions, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price of such
Registrable Securities is at least $15,000,000. In addition, subject to certain
underwriting requirements, we agreed that if we propose to register any of our
securities held by our stockholders (other than the holders of Registrable Securities) in
connection with a public offering of securities solely for cash, we shall, upon the
written request of any holder of Registrable Securities, use our commercially
reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable Securities, to be registered under
the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions, upon receipt of a request
from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities pursuant to Form S-3.

We may never have an operational product or service.

It is possible that there may never be an operational a plug-and-play, high-power, or
stackable PowerBloc or which may fail to miss other design requirements; or that the
product may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to
release the product is the result of a change in business model upon Company’s
making a determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in
the best interest of Company and its stockholders/members/creditors.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership
The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the

company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Nm:fher Type of
Stockholder Name ... | Security [Percentage
|Securities Owned
Owned
Arnold Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP) - (ALNP is
managed by Arnold Leitner, CEO and President, who
owns 45% of ALNP. Arnold has the power and Class A
authority to make all decisions for ALNP. Pradyna 8,855,781 |Common|70.01
Leitner, Arnold's wife, owns 45% of ALNP. Lisa Eidt Stock
and Christian Ruebesam, co-founders, each own 5% of
ALNP).

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, Series
Seed Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6), Series A Preferred Stock, SAFE Note - Series 1, and
SAFE Notes - Series 2. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will
be offering up to 6,756,753 of Class B Common Stock.

Class A Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 67,000,000 with a total of 8,855,781 outstanding.
Voting Rights

The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes for each share held
of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.

Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with Class A Common Stock.
Class B Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 65,000,000 with a total of 29,426,197
outstanding.

Voting Rights

The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law.



Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

Options

The total amount outstanding includes stock options issued to purchase 12,183,165
shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price ranging from $0.0001 to
$0.11 per share.

The total amount outstanding includes stock options reserved but unissued to

purchase 2,815,075 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price ranging
from $0.0001 to $0.11 per share.

Warrants

The total amount outstanding includes warrants to purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class
B Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Series Seed Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6)

The amount of security authorized is 19,866,724 with a total of 19,866,724
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of
shares of Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of
record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the
election of directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all



matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock. (See additional
information below)

Material Rights

Series Seed 1-6 Preferred Stock have been authorized in the following amounts for
each class:

Series Seed 1: 6,552,714 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 2: 2,611,616 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 3: 2,018,566 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 4: 2,309,579 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 5: 1,814,742 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 6: 4,559,507 shares authorized, and outstanding.

We have outstanding warrants to purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class B Common Stock
having exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Dividend Rights.

The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends, out
of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in preference to any declaration or
payvment of any dividend (payable other than in Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Stock or other securities and rights convertible into Common Stock) on the
Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, at the applicable Dividend Rate (as
defined below), payable when and if declared by the Board of Directors.

"Dividend Rate" means, with respect to any share of Preferred Stock, an amount per
annum equal to six percent (6%) of the Original Issue Price (as defined below)
applicable to such share of Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like). After payment of
such dividends, any additional dividends or distributions shall be distributed among
all holders of Class A Commeon Stock, Class B Common Stock and Preferred Stock in
proportion to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of Preferred Stock were
converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective conversion rate.

"Original Issue Price” means $0.3325 per share for each share of the Series Seed-1
Preferred Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock,
$0.1750 per share for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, $0.1500 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per share for each
share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, $0.0500 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per share for each share of the Series A
Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of Preferred



Stock).
Ligquidation Rights.

Upon any Liguidation Event (as defined below), the holders of each series of Preferred
Stock shall receive out of the proceeds or assets legally available for distribution (the
"Proceeds”), prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds to the holders
of Common Stock, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the
Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.5 times the Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to
the Series A Preferred Stock, 1 times the applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared
but unpaid dividends on such share. If, upon the occurrence of such event, the
Proceeds are insufficient to permit the payment of the full preferential amounts, then
the entire Proceeds shall be distributed ratably among the holders of the Preferred
Stock in proportion to the full preferential amount that each such holder is otherwise
entitled to receive under this paragraph.

Upon completion of the distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the
remaining Proceeds, shall be distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by each.

Notwithstanding the above, for purposes of determining the amount each holder of
shares of Preferred Stock is entitled to receive upon a Liquidation Event, each such
holder shall be deemed to have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually
converted) its shares of Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock
immediately prior to the Liquidation Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such
holder would receive, in the aggregate, an amount greater than the amount that would
be distributed to such holder if such holder did not convert such series of Preferred
Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock. If any such holder shall be deemed to
have converted shares of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then such
holder shall not be entitled to receive any distribution that would otherwise be made
to holders of Preferred Stock that have not converted into shares of Class B Common
Stock.

A “Liquidation Event” includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive
license or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the
consummation of our merger or consolidation with or into another entity (except a
merger or consolidation in which the holders of our capital stock immediately prior to
such merger or consolidation continue to hold at least fifty percent (50%) of the
voting power of our capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity immediately
following such merger or consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and
with substantially the same terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or
consolidation), (C) the closing of the transfer, in one transaction or a series of related
transactions, to a person or group of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of
our securities), of our securities if, after such closing, such person or group would hold
fifty percent (50%) or more of our then outstanding voting stock or the outstanding
voting stock of the surviving or acquiring entity, or (D) our liquidation, dissolution or



winding up; provided, however, that a transaction shall not constitute a Ligquidation
Event if its sole purpose is to change our state of incorporation or to create a holding
company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by persons who
held our securities immediately prior to such transaction. The treatment of any
particular transaction or series of related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be
waived by the vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an
as-converted basis).

Conversion of Preferred Stock

Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at anv time, at the option of the holder
thereof, into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B Common
Stock as is determined by dividing the Original Issue Price for such series by the
applicable Conversion Price for such series. The initial "Conversion Price" per share
for each series of Preferred Stock shall be the Original Issue Price of such series,
subject to adjustment as set forth below.

Each share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class B
Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of
(a) the closing of the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which results in at least $30,000,000 of gross
proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Offering ") or (ii) the date, or the occurrence of an
event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the holders of a majority of
the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

Conversion Price Adjustments for Certain Dilutive Issuances.

The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are subject to adjustment in the case of
subdivisions or combinations of common stock, stock dividends and certain other
distributions, and in connection with certain reorganizations, reclassifications and
similar events. The Conversion Price for each series of Preferred Stock, is also subject
to adjustment in the case of certain issuances of securities at less than the then
applicable Conversion Price for such series of Preferred Stock, based on a weighted
average anti-dilution formula.

Voting Rights.

General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes
for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is
entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible, and shall be
entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate class
vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the




holders of Common Stock,

Director Election Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the holders of Preferred Stock shall
be entitled to elect one (1) director (the "Preferred Director”), and the holders of
outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single class, shall be entitled to elect
two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more than three (3) directors, the
holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect any
remaining directors.

Any vacancy, including newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the
authorized number of directors or amendment of our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a
director, may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than
a quorum, or by a sole remaining director; provided, however, that where such
vacancy occurs among the directors elected by the holders of a class or series of stock,
the holders of shares of such class or series may override the Board's action to fill such
vacancy by written consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director
may be removed, either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of
the holders of the shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such director or
directors.

Special Voting Rights of Preferred Stock.

As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain
outstanding, we may not take any of the actions set forth below without the approval
of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis):

(a) consummate a Liquidation Event;

(b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock;

(c) increase or decrease (other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of
authorized shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of any
series of Preferred Stock;

(d) authorize, create or issue any equity security, or instrument convertible into any
security, having a preference over, or on a parity with, any series of Preferred Stock
with respect to dividends, liguidation or redemption, other than the issuance of any
authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred Stock;

(e) (1) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the



Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such
reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security senior to
the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or privilege or (ii)
reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this corporation that is junior to the
Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such
reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security senior to
or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or
privilege;

(f) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund
for such purpose) any Preferred Stock or Common Stock; except for the repurchase of
certain shares of Common Stock from employees, officers, directors, consultants and
service providers, under certain circumstances;

(g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing directors; or

(h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock solely
in the form of additional shares of Common Stock.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to an Investors’ Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders
of each class of our Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering of our Common Stock or other equity securities, then
upon a written request of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock (collectively,
“Registrable Securities”), made any time after six months from the effective date of
such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain exceptions, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price of such
Registrable Securities is at least $15,000,000. In addition, subject to certain
underwriting requirements, we agreed that if we propose to register any of our
securities held by our stockholders (other than the holders of Registrable Securities) in
connection with a public offering of securities solely for cash, we shall, upon the
written request of any holder of Registrable Securities, use our commercially
reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable Securities, to be registered under
the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions, upon receipt of a request
from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities pursuant to Form S-3.

Series A Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 16,574,586 with a total of 9,862,971 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of



shares of Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of
record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the
election of directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all
matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock. (See additional
information in Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material Rights above)

Material Rights

See "Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material Rights" above for a summary of
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Company's classes of preferred
stock.

SAFE Note - Series 1

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Note - Series 1
are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,000,000.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $20,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

Material Rights

One of the SAFE Notes having an outstanding principal balance of $2,000,000, is
convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock,
at a price per share equal to the lesser of (i) an 20% discount to the price per share of
the preferred stock offered in such equity financing, and (b) a price per share based on
a $20,000,000 pre-money valuation. The classes of preferred stock of the Company are
summarized in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached as
Exhibit F to this Offering Document.

SAFE Notes - Series 2

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Notes - Series
2 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,000,000.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $30,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

Material Rights

The remaining SAFE Notes having an aggregate principal balance of $1,000,000, are
convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock,
at a price per share equal to the lesser of (I) a 20% discount to the price of the



preferred stock offered in such equity financing, and (II) a price per share based on a

$30,000,000 pre-money valuation. The classes of preferred stock of the Company are
summarized in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached as
Exhibit F to this Offering Document.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a holder of Class B Common Stock in this offering, your voting rights will be
granted by Proxy to the CEO of the company. Further, even as a minority holder of
Class B Common Stock, yvou would have limited rights in regards to the corporate
actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities, company
repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or company
transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights
less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate
actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
¢ Inan [PO;
e To the company;
¢ To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or



divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $174,199.64
Number of Securities Sold: 1,170,098
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: August 12, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Name: Series A Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $288,500.00
Number of Securities Sold: 3,187,838
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, market
research, installation of demonstration project, and customer acquisition.
Date: December 11, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Name: Series A Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $604,100.00
Number of Securities Sold: 6,675,133
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: October 10, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $78,000.00
Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration
project, inventory, marketing.
Date: February 11, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $10,000.00
Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.
Date: November 06, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



e Name: Series Seed 1-6
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 19,866,714
Use of proceeds: This issuance was related to a conversion of convertible loans
and resulted in no funds to the company, therefore, there was no use of
proceeds.
Date: December 11, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Debt
Final amount sold: $85,567.00
Use of proceeds: For working capital and general corporate purposes.
Date: December 28, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 4(a)(2)

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.
Date: July 07, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $2,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.
Date: January 06, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,080,647.57
Number of Securities Sold: 6,564,455
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: August 14, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and



results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

YouSolar has been developing the PowerBloc®, a solar+battery system based on a
patented parallel direct current architecture for nearly all of its operating history. This
effort included the development of power electronics, controls, firmware and software,
a solar production forecast, a user interface, enclosures, and a cloud-based data and
product database. The company is currently not yet generating substantial revenue.

The company's operating expenses increased from $713,991 in 2019 to $1,165,803 in
2020 due to our expansion and development.

The great majority of our budget has been spent on this broad and complex research
and development. In 2019 and 2020, the company had a few revenues associated with
services and system expansions of the PowerBloc demonstration, which YouSolar
installed in Big Sur, CA, in mid-2019. Still, the company needed to raise more funds in
2020 to develop a commercial product before selling other PowerBloc systems. In
2020, the company was able to close sales agreements of PowerBlocs with 6 additional
customers with increased the total value of future sales to $538,473.14 and the
company took deposits in the amount of $119,383 for equipment purchase and
installation agreements. However, with most installation dates in 2021, in 2020 only
$11,464 of the payments received from our customers can be recognized as net Sales
under the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAPP) of the United States.

Historical results and cash flows:

By the end of 2021, YouSolar will have a commercial PowerBloc solar+battery system.
The system is based on modules that fit cabinets and racks with a 19" width, an
industry standard. However, the company’s high-power single-phase inverter is still
under development. Our limited financial personnel, financial, and management
resources required us to focus all of our research and development effort on the
patented direct current power electronics and controls. In the meantime, we were able
to install PowerBloc systems using 3rd party three-phase inverters. We adapted or
used these inverters for single-phase power supply. The company will continue to
invest a large amount of its budget into developing its single-phase inverter and
detailed engineering, electrical, mechanical, and environmental testing and
certification of its stackable modules. We will resume sales of PowerBloc systems,
which we stopped in mid-2021. At that time, we had to focus our limited resources on
the successful installation of our existing sales. We now have a commercial product



we can sell and install within a few weeks or months of entering into an equipment
sales and installation agreement with a customer. Therefore, we expect our financials
to show an increase in sales and thus to look different from our historical financials.
In addition, the company will introduce its stackable PowerBloc, which will include
our new single-phase inverter. We plan to pre-sell the system in an extensive
marketing campaign. Thus we may show significant deposits associated with these
sales. We will deliver stackable PowerBloc systems no earlier than the 4th quarter of
2022. We project that sales will dominate our 20253 financials while R&D will play an
essential but much smaller role.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

Historically, the company has relied on accredited investors for capital resources but
in 2020 completed an oversubscribed Regulation CF crowdfunding campaign where it
raise the maximum amount of USD 1,070,000 allowed under the regulation.
Subsequently, in 2020, the company raised an additional USD 174,299.91 from
accredited investors. The in 2021 the company was funded with USD 3 MM through
Simple Agreements for Future Equity from one privately-held energy investment firm.
The company has use most of this funding. It will have to borrow money from its
existing and new investors while it waits to receive the first disbursement of this
Regulation CF crowdfunding campaign. The company has no lines of credits but has
been able to receive net-30 terms from some of its suppliers.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

The company relies on the success of this campaign as the primary financial resource
of the company. The success of this campaign is critical to our operations. Assuming
and expecting that this campaign will raise the maximum amount of USD 5 million, we
will begin to explore our next capital raise, including accessing financing other than
through crowdfunding.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

The funds raised by this campaign are necessary for the viability of the company.
However, we note that after our 2020 Regulation CF campaign, which raised USD 1.07
million, the company raised another USD 3.174 million from other investors. We
expect that a successful crowdfunding campaign will again raise the interest of other
investors and thus expect to have more financial resources than those arising from
this campaign.



How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If we only raise the minimum, then all of that amount goes to paying StartEngine fees.
A minimum raise would not extend the company’s time to operate unless, similar to
our first Reg CF campaign in 2020, this campaign raises the interest of other investors
that could fund the company.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If we raise the maximum, then based on our budgeted expenses, we expect to be able
to operate for up to 12 months. We anticipate that cash from customer deposits and
revenues will extend that period but three months or more.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Soon after the completion of this campaign, the company will actively seek new
sources of capital that will allow it to operate longer than if it raises the maximum of
this campaign. The company may also use these new sources of capital to accelerate
its product development and grow sales beyond the current projections by increasing
the marketing budget and adding sales resources.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: The company owes debts to the founders and a family member of the
CEO and president and one of its directors.
Amount Owed: $75,567.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 2030

Related Party Transactions

o Name of Entity: Annemarie Lisa Eidt
Relationship to Company: Founder
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Lisa provides graphic and user
interface design for the company. She is paid cash for services.
Material Terms: Lisa charges the company USD 50/hour for design and research
and USD 35/hour for meetings and communication. Lisa senior designer who
during her career designed the logo, font, and style guide for the logos of all



offices of the German executive branch and its agencies. Example,
https://"www.mooncatchermeme.com/wp-
content/uploads/sites/11,/2018/06/logo_breg en.jpg

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $49,863,813.68
Valuation Details:

The company determined its pre-money valuation based on an analysis of multiple
factors. YouSolar has developed the PowerBloc®, a fully-integrated modular
solar+battery nano-grid for residential, commercial, military, and disaster relief use.
In arriving at the Company’s valuation, the Company has considered its success in the
market, sales projections, technology, product features, intellectual property, market
outlook, and the valuation of “pure players” among the market leaders: Enphase,
SolarEdge, and Generac.

The performance of components and controls of the current, commercial PowerBloc
has been validated for over two years at a demonstration at an off-grid house in Big
Sur. This project also includes the integration of a generator with automatic start and
stop. The Company’s product is now or in a few weeks installed with seven residential
customers and two commercial customers, including a clinic. These installations
constitute commercial sales, but their primary purpose is still to validate the
performance and features of the PowerBloc. The total value of these sales contracts is
U.5.% 1,032,725.

The Company halted marketing after securing these contracts so that it could focus on
executing these projects successfully. The Company is not yet at a stage where current
revenues or projection of sales in 2022, or even 2023, are very useful in determining
the Company's valuation. For example, in 2022, the Company will still improve and
finalize the PowerBloc and introduce its stackable module system to the market.
Complete sales activities will not begin until 2023.

Beginning 2022, the Company will resume sales and expects that it will reach one
hundred sales of its current rack-mounted systems over the next 18 months, which
would equate to about U.5.%5 million in revenues. | addition, the Company plans to
market its new stackable PowerBloc and, in 2022, expects to receive deposits from
250-500 customers for a total value of sale agreements of U.S.$ 5-10 million. The first
stackable systems will not be delivered until late 2022 or even 2023.

The Company’'s nano-grid is built on a patented power architecture; our proprietary
power electronics, controls, and firm- and software; our solar forecast service; our
user interface, our stackable module system; and the system’s exceptional
functionality. The company believes the PowerBloc is equal and superior in
technology, performance, and completeness to products by the market leaders,
Enphase (Market Capitalization U.S.$ 32.30 billion, SolarEdge, (U.5.% 18.44 B) Tesla



(U.S. $1.01 T, L.G. Energy (L.G. Chem U.5.% 48.21B), Panasonic (U.S.% 29.27 B), and
Generac (27.75B) as of 9 November 2020.

The PowerBloc has features found across all of the products of the market leaders and
has many additional features that we believe make the PowerBloc more useful to
customers. Here are some examples:

The PowerBloc can seamlessly integrate any generator, including 50 Hz or 3-phase
generators. For a clinic like one of our customers, energy from a generator can be
critical during prolonged grid outages with little sunshine. Tesla and Enphase cannot
integrate a generator, and Generac can only incorporate a specific generator.

The PowerBloc’s DC-DC STEP™ micro-converter also provides panel-level solar
energy production. Still, unlike Enphase's DC-AC micro-Inverter, STEP operates at the
direct current native to batteries. Unlike Enphase’s micro-inverter, which produces
alternating current, STEP avoids unnecessary back-and-forth conversions between
alternating and direct currents. STEP also operates at a higher electric potential which
results in lower losses in the cables. A micro-converter is also more durable, more
efficient, and has a lower cost structure than a micro-inverter.

The PowerBloc is the only system in the market with genuinely parallel power
architecture and operates at 400 Volt direct current. Every solar panel-level micro-
converter, every battery, and every AC-DC energy input of the PowerBloc work
independently. As a result, a PowerBloc can scale from a residential system with 5kW
of solar and 15kWh of energy storage to a commercial system with 50kW of solar and
hundreds of kilowatt-hours of electricity storage by simply adding more modules.

Because the PowerBloc is built on a stable 400 V DC bus allows the system to directly
power 400 V DC devices such as electric vehicle chargers or LED Lighting with no
converters. Also, one or multiple DC-AC inverters can be connected to the 400 V DC
bus to power a home or business. It is even possible to connect a single-phase or a
three-phase inverter to the same PowerBloc. None of the market leaders can do so.

Like some other products in the market, the PowerBloc receives a weather forecast and
severe weather alerts, but it also has a solar production forecast. The Company’s in-
house solar radiation forecast uses data from atmospheric satellites and creates a real-
time forecast for the entire world with no coverage limit. Our testing shows that this
forecast is more sophisticated and accurate than data available from the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory of the U.S. Department of Energy. The Company
combines this forecast with terrain shading based on a 30-meter grid from radar
satellites, allowing it to predict the solar array's shading by mountains and large
structures during the day. This forecast runs on Amazon Web Services and is sent to
each customer project every two hours.

Last but not least the PowerBloc’s truly parallel and patented power architecture
allows the Company to deliver a stackable module that is entirely plug-and-play. The
mobility and simplicity of these modules open the military and disaster relief market
to the Company, for which none of the market leaders currently have offerings.



YouSolar believes the plug-and-play modular chassis with an internal air chimney that
forms as the modules are stacked is revolutionary. A U.S. patent protects the air
chimney. A pending U.5. patent protects the design of the stackable modules. An
issued patent covers certain aspects of the "look” of the stackable cabinet.

All of the features above are available in the PowerBloc today and included in
PowerBloc systems installed with our first customers. Prototypes of the stackable
PowerBloc module have been built and are in electro-mechanical and environmental
testing.

YouSolar’s product has a low-cost structure. Except for a rectifier, all technology has
been developed or co-developed by YouSolar. The intellectual property is either
owned by the Company, licensed with a fully paid-up license, or purchased from its
engineering partner at preferential prices. As a result, intellectual property is a very
low fraction of the cost of goods sold (“COGS”). The Company’s current COGS is high
because of the very low volume of its first customers, but it is already coming down
rapidly.

YouSolar owns a license on micro-converter technology and a related patent, which it
purchased for a one-time payment. Over U.S. $25 million went into the development
and commercialization of the micro-converter technology. The patent protects the
parallel direct current bus architecture. It is the Company’s understanding that it is
currently the sole licensee. The technology (and patent) allows YouSolar to create a
solar array with a constant potential for direct battery integration at 400 V.

In the fall of 2018 the MIT Angels of Northern California led a Series A round with a
pre-money valuation of U.5.$ 4.5 million. In August 2020, YouSolar closed an
oversubscribed Reg CF financing on StartEngine, during which the Company sold
Common B stock and grossed U.S.$ 1.07 million in investments at U.S.$ 10 million
pre-money valuation. Subsequently, the Company sold U.5.5 174k in Common stock
and issued two Simple Agreements for Future Equity ("SAFE|) for a total investment of
U.S.% 3 million. Thus the Company had a post-money valuation of U.S.$ 14.2 million
after its Reg CF financing.

YouSolar has a solution for a rapidly growing market that is driven by low-cost energy
storage, energy insecurity from climate change, excess cash among potential buyers
due to high savings rate during the pandemic, and most recently, the passage of the
U.S.$ 1 T infrastructure bill by the U.S. Congress. The increasing need for the
PowerBloc and capital to purchase our solution has significantly increased our sales
outlook for 2025 and bevond. In addition, the successful development of the stackable
module has increased our addressable market.

While we had early market success with U.S. $ 1,032,725 in sales after our Big Sur
demonstration and project the value of sales contracts over the next 12-18 months to
be U.S5.% 10-15 million, we base our valuation primarily on our product performance
and features in comparing them to current leaders in the solar-battery market, their
products, and their valuation and the anticipated future directions of a market that
will benefit the Company’s technology and product. The Company set its pre-money



at U.S.% 50 million, which is a 3.5 x increase from our post-money valuation U.S.$ 14.2
million. The Company arrived at this valuation through product and market analysis
and discussions with its investors, directors, and other market experts.

Disclaimers

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In
making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all preferred stock is converted to
common stock; (ii) all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right
to acquire shares are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock
plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $3,088,000 in SAFEs outstanding.
Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for
further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities which mayv affect
your ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.62 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e StartEngine Fees
96.5%
If we only raise USD 9.999.62 then USD 9,649.63 amount pays for the
StartEngine services fees.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,999,997.22, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Marketing
14.0%
Online and direct marketing and sales to customers in the United States and
pilot sales in the Caribbean. Digital marketing costs for paid advertisement,
credit card, and related fees associated with fundraising. Digital marketing costs
may vary due to the click-through rate of the ads.

o Research & Development
43.0%
Improvements to the chassis and controls of the PowerBloc modules.
Development of a high-power single-phase inverter and other power electronics.



Continued development and environmental testing of the stackable PowerBloc
system. Development of the cloud-based monitoring and customer architecture.

e [nventory
15.0%
Critical parts inventory such as SicFETSs, micro-processors, and magnetics. Long-
lead inventory such as battery packs.

® (Operations
24.5%
This amount includes salaries not related to R&D, legal fees, rent, facilities,
communications, rent and facilities, membership or conference fees.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.yousolar.com (https://yousolar.com/corporate).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section



4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com,/yousolar

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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artesian
CPA, LLC

To the Board of Directors of
YouSolar, Inc.
Emeryville, California
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of YouSolar, Inc. (the “Company™) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of operations,

changes in stockholder’s deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the vears then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Substantial Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company generated negative cash
flows from operations and incurred net losses of 51,150,018 and 5744,141 for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, has a working capital deficit ot $595,078 and accumulated deficit of
$6,390,481 as of December 31, 2020, and has not generated significant revenues to date. These factors,
among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparaton and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Artesian CPA, LLC
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877.968.3330 f: 720.634.0905
infol@ ArtesianCPA.com | www. ArtesianCPA.com



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt abour the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resultng from fraud is higher than for one resultng from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 1s
expressed.

¢ Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signiticant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Aecua (B LLC

Artesian CPA, LL.C
Denver, Colorado
December 21, 2021

Artesian CPA, LLC
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 50202
p: 877.968.3330 £ 720.634.0905
infola@ ArtesianCPA.com | waw. ArtesianCPA.com



YOUSOLAR INC.
Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash § 122128 S 24,553
Accounts receivable 1,655 -
MNotes recervable 29817 25,817
Notes receivable - related party 26,971 19,441
Escrow receivable 49078 -
Inventory 112953 11,016
Prepaid expenses 4,750 2,500
Total Current Assets 347 352 83,327
Non-Current Assets:
Property and equipment, net 2573 3,275
Intangible assets, net 380328 393478
Deposits 9865 5,089
Total Non-Current Assets 392 766 401,842
TOTAL ASSETS 3 740,118 5 485,169

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.

_ 3.



YOUSOLAR INC.

Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019

Deccimber 31, December 31,

20210 20159
LIABILITIES AND STOCEHOLDERS" DEFICIT
Laalsilities:
Current Liabalities:
Mecouanes rul:,'uh]t: angd pcerued ERPENSLE £ 1o, 415 b1 251,723
Customer c_:li.rprwitx 1 1":],3&5 Fu'?,ﬁl..l'lfl
Iovtes payable EEREL] 2R2 000
Medovies rm:.'.'ll'.h' - related parey iy, 757 G nalsE
Converthle motes Fldﬂ:,"fll'llq' 131 I':.HKI 131 ,‘:."l (1]
Interest payable Od, 5401 Q3950
Paycheck Protection Program loan 23,110 -
Dwe vo related party 7381 7.A81
Total Current Liabalicies D42 430 BU3003
Mon-Current Liabilities:
SAFLE habalicy BE O 20,000
Total Mon-Current Liabalicies BN eI
Toal Liabilities 1,030 430 13063

Srockholders' Deficic

Series Seed-1 Peeferred stock, 30000001 par, 6,552,714 shares authorized,

6,207,787 shares issucd and outstanding as of both December 31, 2020

and 2019, Liquidation prefercence of 53,000,134 a2 of both Decamber 31,

20200 anad 2004 G ]
Series Seod-2 Preferred stock, 30000001 par, 2,611,616 shares authorized,

2,557 431 shares issued and outstanding as of both Decemnber 31, 2020

ared 2014 ]J-l'_lLl.i.I'.:Ia"l.l.ii arl FIL‘I:-LTI_'I:'IL'\L' of ST{:r_.",l.?':.:' ag of both December 31,

2020 arad 200740, 3
Series Seed-3 Preferred stock, 30000001 par, 2018560 shares authorized,

20N E 560 shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31, 2020

and 2019, Liquidation preference of $529.874 as of both December 31,

20200 and 20074, 2 2
Series Seed-d Preferred stock, 3000001 par, 2300577 shares authorized,

2309570 shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31, 2020

and 2019, Liquidation preference of 3519055 as of both December 31,

il

2020 and 207149, 2 2
Series Seed-5 Preferred seock, 30000001 par, 1,514,742 shares authorized,

1,614,742 shares issued and outseanding as of both Decemnber 31, 2020

and 20149, ]J-r.'lLl.il;,:Islt'ii 3 ]1rq_=r-|:_'1'|::r|ﬂ= n'FS‘I-I'v!":,‘HJ!".f:u as of both December .?I-'I,

2020 and 2019, 2 2

Series Seed-6 Preferred stock, 30000001 par, 4,.559.507 shares authorized,

4,517 668 shares 1ssued and r1l_|l:._*:ra.n|;:|in|'_r| as of borth Decembier 31, 20020

and 2019, Liquidation preference of 2338825 as of both December 31,

2020 and 2019, 5
Series A Preferred stock, S0,000001 par, 16,574,586 shares authornzed,

9752474 and B.237 008 shares 1ssued and owtstanding as of

Drecember 31, 2020 and 20019, respectively, Ligquidation preference of

EBB2.599 and £772.599 az of December 31, 2020 and 20019, respectively., 100 o
Class A commeon seock, 30000000 par, 67 KKK shares authorized,

55853781 shares 1ssued and outstanding as of both Diecember 31, 20020

and 2019, 4 L
Class B common steck, S0000001 par, 65000000 shares authorzed,

TO08441 and 490,301 shares issoed and cucstanding as of

L

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 7 -
Additional paid-in capital 6, 100123 4812531
Accumulared deficic (G, 3481 (5,240 4635

Total Stockholders" Deficit {2 312 (427 B4y
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFLCIT 3 T4, 118 5 AR5 160

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
4 -



YOUSOLAR, INC,
Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Service revenues 3 56§ 1,500
Sales, net 11,464 -
Cost of goods sold (9,494
Gross profit on sales 1,970
Operating Expenses:
General and administrative 743,839 459 (40
Research and development 386,956 250,373
Sales and marketing 35,008 4 578
Total Operating FExpenses 1,165,803 713,991
Loss from operations (1,163,287) (712,491)
Other Income (Expenses):
Gain on accounts payable forgiveness 62,795 -
Interest income ¢ -
Interest expense (49,535) (31,6500
Total Other Income (Expenses) 13,269 (31,6500
Provision for income taxes - -
Net Loss $ (1,150,018 § (744,141)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.

-



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Fedanci a1 Liecemmbier 11, ALK
lssgance of peeferred mock for cash
Lnpreraing of sodes payilde m

St A pricteimed Ak
Mot his

Bkt Dexerghber 31, 2008
It ol eindi o shock for coih
Issgaden: of e sk hrougsh

Fepabiiurs Crovr o Frmdisig
U ey cosie
Conrecrainm of notes porabls m
Sera N preformal sieck
Lo of nicroi papbk io
Chus H coimemion siech
Sarck-hased compersatnn
|msanre nf wearrrns
Wit

Fudsncy a3 Decereher 1, 3130

agriea Soed-1 Agriea Jrod-2 Senea Sped-1 Sems fevil-4 Aok s Seed-4 Spnies Sopd Aoripa & Claan & Clasa R
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YOUSOLAR, INC,
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Met loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
In operating activities:

Gain on accounts payable forgiveness

Inventory write-off

Equipment write-off

Depreciation

Amotrtization

Stock-based compensation

Fair value of warrants

Changres in operatingr assets and liabilities:
(Increasc) /decrease in accounts receivable
iIncrease) /decrease in notes receivable
iIncreasc) / decrease in inventory
(Increase) /decrease in prepaid expenses
iIncreasc)/decrease in deposits
Increase/ (decrease) in accounts pavable and accrued expenses
Increase/ (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase/ (decrease) in interest payable
Increase/ {decreasce) in license pavable

MNet Cash Used in Operating Activides

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of intangmbles

Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Due from related party
Proceeds from notes payvable
Repayments of notes payable
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan
Proceeds from SAFE liability
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - Regulation CF
Ofterning costs
MNet Cash Provided by Financing Activities
MNet Change In Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year
Cash at End of Year
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes
Supplemental Disclosure of Mon-Cash Financing Activity:
Conversion of notes payable to Series A preferred stock

Conversion of aceraed interest to Class B commion stock

2020 2019
§ (1,150,018) 3% (744,141
(62,795) -
3,902 -
. 783
702 GR5
33,150 32317
163,285 -
3,450
(1,635) -
{4,000 (7,829
(105,839 {10,206}
(2,250 -
(4,776) -
(22,5100 142,454
61,8483 55,000
21,329 18,866
- (87,500
(1,066,142) (599.571)
. {3,509,
¢ 20,0008 -
(20,0000 {3,509
(7,530) (6,617)
187,500 164,500
(58,360) (B5,.466)
53,110 -
68 000 200,000
- 514,100
174,300 -
969,077 -
{202,374 -
1,183,717 590517
97,575 {3,563)
24 553 28,116
b 122,128 3 24,553
g 24756 % 12,784
5 - 3 -
5 110,000 3 L0000
§ 20,784 3 -

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

YouSolar, Inc. (“the Company™), is a corporation organized on May 11, 2010 under the laws of
Delaware, originally organized as Fireball Solar Technology LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
which was converted to a corporation on January 16, 2013 as Fireball Solar Technology, Inc. On
April 22, 2013, the Company changed its name to YouSolar, Inc. The Company provides solar
technology and hardware to customers. The Company began commercial operations in 2012,

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) in the United States of America (“U.S.”") as promulgated by the Financial
Accounting Standard Board (“"FASB”) Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC"). The Company

adopted the calendar vear as its basis of reporting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The management considers all cash on hand and in banks and highly liquid securities with an original
maturity of less than three months to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s cash and cash
equivalents in bank deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates the credit worthiness of the
financial institutions and has determined the credit exposure to be negligible,

Accounts Recervable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts and are periodically evaluated
for collectability based on past credit history with customers and other tactors, Provisions for losses
on accounts receivable are determined based on loss experience, known and inherent risk in the
account balance and current economic conditions.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and accounted for using the weighted average cost

method.,  Inventory as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 includes materials, which amounted to
$112,953 and $11,016, respectively.

The management regularly evaluates inventory for possible impairment and obsolescence, and
estimate inventory market value based on several subjective assumptions including estimated future
demand and market conditions, as well as other observable factors such as current sell-through of the

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

Company's products, recent changes in product demand, global and regional economic conditions,
historical experience selling through liquidation and price discounted channels, and the amount of
inventory on hand. When the estimated inventory market value is less than its carrying value, the
carrying value is adjusted to market value and the resulting impairment charge is recorded in costs of
net revenues in the statements of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Company wrote off inventory amounting to 33,902 and 30, respectively, to cost goods sold in the
statements of operations,

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses include amounts paid in advance for services to be rendered to the Company. As
of December 31, 2020 and 2019, this account includes advance payments for rent and research and
development.

Py rand FEguipmen

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is recorded for property and equipment
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets, which 1s currently 5 years for
its capitalized assets. The management reviews the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the
related useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of
a long-lived asset might not be recoverable. Property and equipment as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 and depreciation expense for the vears then ended are as follows:

2020 2019
Computer Equipment § 3509 § 3,509
Less: Accumulated depreciation (936) (234)
Property and equipment, net $ 2573 0§ 3275
Depreciation expense 3 702 3 685

lntangih]& Assets

Intangible assets include patent, product certification and licensing cost, website and trademark. Costs
to acquire these intangible assets are capitalized and amortized over their expected economic useful
lives, which is currently 16 yvears for patent, 10} vears for product certification and licensing cost and
15 years for website. Management has determined that the acquired trademark is an indefinite-live
intangible assets and therefore records no amortization expense but assesses it for impairment
annually. Where the future benetits of the rights are unknown, these costs are expensed as incurred.
For the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded no impairment.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and amortization expense for the years then
ended are as follows:

2020 2019
Patent 3 500,000 F 500,000
Product certification and licensing cost 20,0000 -
Website 0,000 S 000
Trademark 745 T45
Total 5329 745 509,745
Less: Accumulated amortization (149417) {116,267)
Intangible asset, net § 380328 0§ 393478
Amortization expense % 33,150 % 32317

Impairment of Long-TLived Assets

The management continually monitors events and changes in circumstances that could indicate
carrying amounts of long-lived assets may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in
circumstances are present, the management assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets by
determining whether the carrving value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted
expected future cash flows. If the total of the future cash flows is less than the carrving amount of
those assets, the management recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value of the Company’s long-lived assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less costs to sell. For the years ended December
31, 2020 or 2019, the Company does not have any impairment losses on long-lived assets,

Convertible Instruments

LS. GAAP requires companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and
account for them as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The
criteria include circumstances in which (a) the cconomic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of
the host contract, (b) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded derivatve instrument
and the host contract i1s not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally accepted
accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in carnings as they occur and (c) a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a
derivative instrument. An exception to this rule is when the host instrument is deemed to be
conventional as that term 1s described under applicable U5, GAAP.

When the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated
from their host instruments, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes
for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences
between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction
and the effective conversion price embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements
are amortized over the term of the related debt to their stated date of redemption. The Company also
records, when necessary, deemed dividends for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

in preferred shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common stock
at the commitment date of the transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the
preferred shares.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses, notes pavable, interest pavable.

FASB guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites (Level
1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded
instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, Financial instruments are considered Level
3 when their fair values are determined using pricing maodels, discounted cash flows or similar

techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input 1s unobservable.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the carrving amounts of the Company™s financial assets and
liabilities reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

Revenue Recognition

ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ establishes principles for reporting
information about the nature, amount, tming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
the entity’s contracts to provide goods or services to customers. Revenues are recognized when
control of the promised goods or services are transferred to a customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company applies the following five steps in order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue to
be recognized as it fulfills its obligations under each of its agreements: 1) identify the contract with a
customer; 2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the transaction price;
4} allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract; and 5) recognize revenue
as the performance obligation is satisfied. No adjustments to revenue recognition were required from
the adoption of ASC 606, which was adopted January 1, 2019 and retroactively applied to the periods
presented. The Company generally recognizes revenues upon rendering of services, delivery, or
installation of the promised goods.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

Cash received from customer orders but not yet delivered or installed are recorded as customer
deposits. Customer deposits as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was §119,383 and 357,500,

respectively.

Cost of goods sold includes product costs and associated freight, direct labor and overhead costs.
Cost of goods sold for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 59,494 and 30, respectively.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total expense related to advertising was immaterial,

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, which includes salaries, supplies and
contractors’ fees. Total expense related to research and development was $386,956 and $250,373 for
the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Stock-Based Eﬁlﬂp:‘:ﬂﬁﬂ.ﬂﬂ[l

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation -
Ntock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based compensation
cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company
uses the Black-5choles option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Gain on Accounts Pavable Forgiveness

The Company recognized a gain of 362,795 for the year ended December 31, 2020 related to
forgiveness of various previously accrued legal costs,

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Tncome
Taxes, Under the lability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary ditferences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the vears in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
it 1s unlikely that the deferred tax assets will not be realized,

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for all vears subject to
examination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that
has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where there is less than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions.

The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimated income taxes payvable or
refundable on income tax returns for the current period and for the estimated future tax effect

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

attributable to temporary differences and carryforwards, Measurement of deferred income items is
based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax assets
being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future. The
Company pays Federal and California income taxes at rates of approximately 21% and 8.8%,
respectively, and has used an effective blended rate of 28% to derive net tax assets of 1,588,625 and
$1,321,285 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, resulting from its net operating loss
carrytorwards and other temporary book to tax differences. Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s
ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize the net operating loss (NOL)
carryforwards before they begin to expire in 2035, the Company has recorded a full valuation
allowance to reduce the net deferred tax asset to zero.

The U.S. tax reform bill that Congress voted to approve December 20, 2017, also known as the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA), made sweeping maodifications to the Internal Revenue Code, including a
much lower corporate tax rate, changes to credits and deductions, and a move to a territorial system
for corporations that have overseas carnings. The TCJA replaced the prior-law graduated corporate
tax rate, which taxed income over $10 million at 35%, with a flat rate of 21%.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has available net NOL carryvforwards for federal tax
of approximately $5.08 million and $4.25 million. Federal NOL incurred prior to tax year 2018
amounting to $3.25 million will be carried forward for 20 years and will begin to expire in 2033, Post-
TCJA NOL amounting to $1.83 million and $1.00 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

respectively, will be carried forward indefinitely but limited to 80% of future taxable income beginning

in 2021.

The Company has evaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it does not have any
uncertain tax positions, The Company will recognize interest and penalties related to any uncertain
tax positions through its income tax expense.

The Company files ULS. federal and state income tax returns. The Company’s tax returns for 2018 to
2020 remain open to examination by the taxing jurisdiction to which the Company is subject.

MNOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any
adjustments that might result from uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going concern. The
Company generated negative cash flows from operating activities, incurred net losses of $1,150,018
and §744,141 for the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, has a working capital
deficit of 3595,078 and accumulated deficit of 36,390,481 as of December 31, 2020, and has not
renerated significant revenues to date. These factors, amonyg others, raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date
the financial statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues
and/or obtain financing sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy such to produce
profitable operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to generate
revenues and raise capital as needed to satisty its capital needs. No assurance can be given that the

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

Company will be successful in these efforts. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a
going concern.

MNOTE 4: NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Company has two employee loan agreements amounting to $29,817 and 325,817 as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Also, the Company has an employee loan agreement with its chief
executive officer (CEO) amounting to $26,971 and 319,441 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. These loans bear interest rate of 1% per annum and are payable on June 30, 2030 or as
soon as the employee resigns,

MNOTE 5: DEBT FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Convertible Notes

In 2012 to 2018, the Company issued various convertible notes for total principal of $3,627,723,
These notes bear interest ranging from 2.04% to 15% per annum. In 2018, §3,495,823 of these
convertible notes, including its total accrued interest of $323,624, were converted into Series Seed
preferred stock, Series A preferred stock, and Class B common stock, leaving unpaid unconverted
principal of $131,900 as of both December 31, 2020 and 2019, The Company incurred interest
expense of 56,905 and $6,314 for the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, related
to these unconverted notes and accrued interest payable of $28,730 and 521,826 as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company and the note holders agreed to conversion agreements in
2021 as described in Note 11, which fully exhausted the repayment obligations under these
agreements.

The convertible notes are subject to automatic conversion upon the next qualified equity financing (as
defined in the note agreements) of not less than $2,500,000, or optional conversion upon a non-
qualitied financing at the majority holders’ election. The conversion price on this conversion feature
is either 33% premium or 20% to 80% discount (depends on class of equity to be converted), to
pricing in the triggering equity financing or the share price implied by a valuation cap of $4,500,000
on the Company’s fully diluted capital. The notes are also optionally convertible at maturity, where
the conversion price under this conversion feature is at the share price implied by a valuation cap of
$4,500,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capital. 1f there is a corporate transaction (as defined in
the agreement), the holders of the convertible notes may elect to convert to Class A common stock
at the price per share implied by a valuation cap of $4,500,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capital
or take payment of 100 of the then outstanding principal plus accrued interest. The Company
reviewed these notes for beneficial conversion features and determined the notes did not require
discount for beneficial conversion teatures at the issuance dates.

+ g |:.

The Company has various short-term loan agreements from 2014 to 2018 with principal balances
totaling $288,509 as of December 31, 2018, In 2020 and 2019, the Company issued various short-
term loans amountdng to $187,500 and $160,500, respectively. Interest rates on these loans are 10%

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

and 15% per annum with maturity period of less than a year. All these loans are unsecured and mostly
are already due. In 2019, a 510,000 principal loan was converted to 110,497 shares of Series A
preferred stock. In 2020, $110,000 of these loans’ principal was converted to 1,215,466 shares of
Series A preferred stock and $20,784 of related interest payable were converted to 103,699 shares of
Class B common stock. Principal balances outstanding on these loans as of December 31, 2020 and
2019 amounted to $369,737 and $350,603, respectively. Most of the holders of these loans are the
Company’s stockholders and include notes payable to Company’s CEO and his family amounting to
$66,737 and $68,603 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Interest expense incurred on
these loans for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $38,200 and $25,3306,
respectively. Interest payable as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounred to 365,771 and $72,130,

respectively.

On March 5, 2020, the Company issued warrants to one of its lenders (see Note 6), valued at $3,450,
which was recorded as a discount on the loan and amortized over its term. Amortization of discount
to interest expense amounted to $3,450 for the year ended December 31, 2020.

SAFE Agreements

In 2020 and 2019, the Company issued simple agreements for future equity (SAFE Agreement) in
exchange for cash investments amounting to $68,000 and $20,000 (the “Purchase Amount™),
respectively. The terms provide for automatic conversion of the SAFE agreements’ purchase amounts
into the Company™s preferred stock if and upon an equity financing event, which is generally defined
as a transaction or series of transactions involving the issuance of the Company’s preferred stock at a
fixed pre-money valuation. The number of shares of preferred stock the SAFE agreements convert
into is the Purchase Amount divided by the conversion rate determined either (a) valuation cap price
(as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a $10,000,000 post-money valuation on
the Company’s fully diluted capitalization); or (b} a 20% discount (15% on one SAFE agreement) to
the share pricing in the trigpering round, whichever results in a greater number of shares of preferred
stock.

In the case of a liquidity event (as defined in the SAFE agreement) before the termination of the
SAFE, the investor has the option to either a) receive a cash payvment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b) the amount payable on the number of common stock shares equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by the liquidity price (as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a $10,000,000
post-money valuation on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization).

The SAFE agreements provide holders with various additional protections, including preferences over
stockholders in a dissolution event for payment of the Purchase Amount and anti-dilution protections.

As no repayments nor conversions occurred to date, the balance of the SAFE liability as of December

31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $88,000 and $20,000, respectively.

On May 7, 2020, the Company obtained a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan from a bank
amounting to $53,110. This loan bears interest at 1% per annum and will mature 2 years from the date
of first disbursement of the loan. As no repayments have occurred to date, the outstanding principal

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

balance as of December 31, 2020 was $53,110. This loan was forgiven in May 2021, as discussed in

MNote 11.
NOTE 6: STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY /(DEFICIT)

The Company authorized 36,441,310 shares of preferred stock at $0.000001 par value and 132,000,000
shares of common stock at $0.000001 par value. The Company designated its preferred stock as
6,552,714 shares of Series Seed-1 preferred stock, 2,611,616 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock,
2,018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock, 2,309,579 shares of Series Seed-4 preferred stock,
1,814,742 shares of Series Seed-5 preferred stock, and 4,559,507 shares of Series Seed-6 preferred
stock (the Series Seed-1 preferred stock, Series Seed-2 preferred stock, Series Seed-3 preferred stock,
Series Seed-4 preferred stock, Series Seed-5 preferred stock and Series Seed-6 preferred stock,
collectively, are referred to as the “Series Seed preferred stock™) and 16,574,586 shares of Series A

preferred stock. The Company designated its common stock as 67,000,000 shares of Class A common
stock and 65,000,000 shares of Class B common stock.

The original issuance price for each class of preferred stock is as follows:
e Series Seed-1 preferred stock: $0.3325
e Series Seed-2 preferred stock: $0.20
e Series Seed-3 preferred stock: $0.175
® Series Seed-4 preferred stock: 50,15
®  Series Seed-5 preferred stock: 30,0615
e Series Seed-0 preferred stock: $0.05
e Series A preferred stock: $0.0905

All preferred stockholders have various other rights and preferences over common stockholders,
including voting rights on an as-converted basis, and other protective provisions. The preferred
stockholders have certain dividend preferences over common stockholders at a per share rate of 6%
of each series of preferred stock’s original i1ssuance price (as defined above) per annum, and then
ratable distribution of any additional dividends on an as-converted basis with common stock. The
preferred stock is subject to an optional conversion right, where preferred stock is convertible into
fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B common stock at a 1:1 rate, with certain dilution
protections. All shares of preferred stock are subject to automatic conversion into Class B common
stock upon the earlier of an initial public otfering with at least $30,000,000 gross proceeds or by vote
or written consent of the requisite holders.

Preferred stockholders have liquidation preferences of (1) with respect to the Series Seed preferred
stock, the product of 1.5 and applicable dilution protected original issue price per share (as defined
above) and (if) with respect to the Series A preferred stock, the applicable original issue price (as
defined above), plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. As of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the total hiquidaton preferences were $6,301,182 and 36,191,182, respectively. All remaining
assets of the Company after satistaction of the preferred stock liquidation preferences are distributed
to common stockholders, but preferred stockholders are entitled to instead receive proceeds on an as-
converted basis should such proceeds be greater than the liguidation preference.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years then ended

Class A common stock have voting rights of 10 votes per share and Class B common stock have
voting rights of 1 vote per share. Preferred stock is entitled to vote with holders of Class B common
stock on an as-converted basis. The Class A common stock is subject to an optional conversion,
where Class A common stock is convertible into fully paid and no-assessable shares of Class B
common stock at a 1:1 rate.

Preferred Stock

In 2019, the Company issued 5,680,601 shares of Series A preferred stock at $0.0905 per share
for gross proceeds of $514,100. Also, the Company issued 110,497 shares of Series A preferred
stock in conversion of notes payable with principal amount of $10,000) at a conversion price of
S0.0905, as discussed 1n Note 5.

In 2020, the Company issued 1,215,466 shares of Series A preferred stock in conversion of notes
payable with principal amount of §110,000 at a conversion price of $0.0905.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 6,207,787 and 6,207,787 shares of Series Seed-1 preferred stock
were issued and outstanding, 2,557,431 and 2,557,431 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock were
issued and outstanding, 2,018,566 and 2,018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock were issued
and outstanding, 2,309,579 and 2,309 579 shares of Series Seed-4 preferred stock were 1ssued and
outstanding, 1,814,742 and 1,814,742 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, 4,517,668 and 4,517,668 sharcs of Series Seed-6 preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, and 9752474 and 8,537,008 shares of Series A preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, all respectively.

Common Stock

In 2020, the Company issucd 5,989,149 shares of Class B common stock at $0.17 per share under
Regulation Crowdfunding (Reg CF) through StartEngine Secure, LLC. The Company received
total gross proceeds of $1,018,155 from this offering as of December 31, 2020 and incurred total
offering costs of $202,374 for the year ended December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2020,
549,078 of the invested funds is held under escrow and recognized as escrow receivable on the
balance sheet.

In 2020, the Company issued 1,025,292 shares of Class B common stock at 30.17 per share for
total proceeds of 3174300, Also in 2020, the Company issued 103,699 shares of Class B common
stock in conversion of interest payable amounting to $20,784 at a conversion price of $0.2004, as
discussed in Note 5.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 8,855,781 and 8,855,781 shares of Class A common stock were
issued and outstanding, and 7,608,441 and 490,301 shares of Class B common stock were issued and
outstanding, all respectively.

Stock Options

The Company has adopted the 2013 Stock Plan (the “Plan™), which provides tor the grant of shares
of stock options to employees and non-employee directors, The Company has reserved 15,006,943

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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shares of Class B common stock for issuance under the Plan. The options generally have a term of
ten years and vesting generally occurs immediately. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 2,815,075
and 12,420,075 shares of Class B common stock were available for grant, respectively.

A summary of options actvities for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2009
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Options Excrcise Price Oprions Exercise Price

Otstanding - beginning of vear 2,578,165 3 .07 2,578,165 3 0.07
Caranted D5 (0K 3 (05 3
Forfeited - 3 - - 3
Ohatstanding - end of vear 12,183,165 3 0,04 2278163 3 007
Exercisable at end of year 12,183,165 3 i, (4 257165 5 007
Intrinsic value of optons outstanding
at yvear-end 2 - £ D5, (00
Welghted average durarion (vears) to
expiration of ourstanding options at
year-end B.69 760
Weighted average duration (vears) o
expiration of exercisable options at
— 8,60 7,600

The Company measures emplovee stock-based awards at grant-date fair value and recognizes
emplovee compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
Determining the appropriate fair value of stock-based awards requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the fair value ot the Company’s common stock, and tor stock options, the
expected life of the option, and expected stock price volatility, The Company used the Black-Scholes
option pricing model to value its stock option awards. The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of stock-based awards represent management’s best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties
and the application of management’s judgment. As a result, if factors change and management uses
different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be materially ditterent for future
awards.

The expected life of stock options was estimated using the “simplified method,” which 15 the midpoint
between the vesting start date and the end of the contractual term, as the Company has limited
historical information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and
employment duration for its stock options grants. The simplified method is based on the average of
the vesting tranches and the contractual life of each grant. For stock price volatlity, the Company
uses comparable public companies as a basis for its expected volatility to calculate the fair value of
options grants. The risk-free interest rate is based on U5, Treasury notes with a term approximating
the expected life of the option. The estmation of the number of stock awards that will ultmately vest
requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates ditfer trom the Company’s
current estimates, such amounts are recognized as an adjustment in the period in which estimates are

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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revised. In accordance with ASC 718, as a private company, the Company has elected to use a (0%
forfeiture rate in calculating its stock compensation expense.

The stock option issuances were valued using the using the following inputs for the vears ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Risk Free Interest Rate 0.37% n/a
Expected Dividend Yield 0.00% n/a
Expected Volatility 69,005 n/a
Expected Life (years) 5 n/a

Fair Value per Stock Option  $0.017 n/a

The Company calculated its estimate of the value of the stock-based compensation granted for the
vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 under FASB ASC 718, and recorded compensation costs
related to the stock option grants of $163,285 and $0, respectively. As of both December 31, 2020
and 2019, there was no unrecognized stock-based compensation.

Warrants

Irsuances

In 2020, the Company issued warrants to one of its lenders. The warrant expires after a 10-year term
in 2030, The warrants provide the lender with the right to purchase up to 150,000 shares of Class B
common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrants were valued under the Black-
Scholes model at $3,450), which was recorded as a discount on the loan and amortized over its term.

The Black-Scholes fair value was determined using the following inputs:

Risk Free Interest Rate 0L.67%
Expected Dividend Yield CLO0% 5
Expected Volatility GULO0%,
FExpected Life (vears) 5

Fair Value per Stock Option  $0,023

Outstanding

Outstanding warrants for the purchase of Class B common stock as of December 31, 2020 and 2019
were 5,595,350 and 5,445,350, respectively. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, no warrants have
been converted into the Company’s stock., As of December 31, 2020, the weighted average exercise
price of the outstanding warrants was §0.19 per share, with a weighted average duration to expiration
of 5.9 years and an intrinsic value of $29 462,

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has notes receivable from its CEO amounting to $26,971 and $19,441 as of December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has notes pavable to its CEO and his family amounting to 866,737 and $68,603 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, as discussed in Note 5.

The Company paid $2,678 and $0 of consulting fees to one of its founders for the vears ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
NOTE 8: CONTINGENCIES

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actons in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, if any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 9: LEASE COMMITMENT

In October 2020, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space, storage for solar
applications, and assembly of components into electrical cabinets, which commenced on January 1,
2021 and for a period of three years ending December 31, 2023, The agreement called for a security
deposit of $4,776 and one-month advance rental. The monthly rental tee is $2,250 for the first year,
with subsequent annual rent increases of 3% over the next two vears.

Future minimum payments under this lease are as follows:

2021 $27.000
2022 27.816
2023 28,656

Total future minimum lease payments  $83,472

MNOTE 10: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recently Fudﬂpt&d a"tc{:numing Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenne from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).
This ASU supersedes the previous revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605—
Revenue Recognition and most industry-specific guidance throughout the ASC, The core
principle within this ASU is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are
transterred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received for
those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, which deferred the effective date for ASU 2014-09 by one vear to
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, while providing the option to early adopt for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. Transition methods under ASU 2014-09 must

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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be through either (i) retrospective application to each prior reporting period presented, or (i)
retrospective application with a cumulative effect adjustment at the date of initial application.
The Company adopted this new standard effective January 1, 2019.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASLU requires a lessee
to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability under most operating leases in its balance
sheet. The ASU is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021,
including interim periods within those fiscal vears. Early adoption is permitted. The Company
is in the process of evaluating the impact of this standard.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718):
Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2018-077). ASU 2018-07
eliminates the separate accounting model for nonemployee share-based payment awards and generally
requires companies to account for share-based payment transactions with nonemplovees in the same
way as share-based payment transactions with employees. The accounting remains different for
attribution, which represents how the equity-based payment cost is recognized over the vesting period,
and a contractual term election for valuing nonemployee equity share options. ASU 2018-07 1s
effective for non-public companies in fiscal vears, and interim periods within those vears, beginning
after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2020
with early adoption permitted. The Company early adopted this standard effective in these financial
statements, which did not have a material impact on Company’s financial condition or results of
operations.

Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not vet effective, accounting
standards could have a material effect on the accompanying combined financial statements. As
new accounting pronouncements are issued, we will adopt those that are applicable under the
circumstances,

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

SAFE Agreements

Subsequent to December 31, 2020, the Company issued SAFE agreements in exchange for cash
investments totaling $3,000,000, under substantially similar terms to the SAFE agreements discussed
in Note 3, aside from using a post-money valuation on the Company’s capitalization of $20,000,000)
for 32,000,000 of the SAFE agreements and 330,000,000 for 31,000,000 of the SAFE agreements.

Forgiveness of SBA PPP Loan

In May 2021, the SBA forgave the Company’s PPP amounting to $53,110.

Lease Agreement

In June 2021, the term of the lease agreement discussed in Note 9 was extended for eight months,
from January 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024, Effectve July 19, 2021, the lease premises was adjusted to
include an additional 1,250 square teet, with additional base rent for the expanded premises of $1,022

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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